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R045 : Proposed Elgin Park Estates Development (Application No. 7900-0176-00)

 

 

     Corporate     NO:  R045

     Report     COUNCIL DATE:    March 12, 2001

 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL
 

TO: Mayor & Council DATE: March 8, 2001

FROM: General Manager, Engineering
General Manager, Planning & Development

FILE: 7900-0176
3801-333

SUBJECT: Proposed Elgin Park Estates Development (Application No. 7900-0176-00)

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS
 

1.     That 34 Avenue not be a “through road” from 140 to 144 Street.
 

2.     That the City and the developer jointly pursue the necessary environmental investigation of the landfill
area north of the alignment of 34 Avenue towards achieving Provincial approval of the environmental
components of the development prior to Final Reading.

 
3.     That the Council endorse in principle the proposed public consultation process for amending the
development plan for Development Application No. 7900-0176-00.

 
INTENT
 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's direction on options for 34 Avenue, and addressing the landfill
issues north of 34 Avenue, and to seek Council's endorsement of a recommended public consultation process.

 
BACKGROUND
 

The Public Hearing on the proposed Elgin Park Estates development (Application No. 7900-0176-00), held on
February 19 and 20, 2001, resulted in a considerable amount of public concern being raised and questions being
voiced.  At its Regular meeting on February 26, 2001, Council considered third reading of the related Rezoning
By-law No. 14334.  Council decided to defer third reading and adopted the following motion:
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“That By-law 14224 be referred back to staff to prepare a Corporate Report to Council addressing the issues
and concerns raised at the Public Hearing, including, but not limited to a further analysis of the landfill issues,
particularly on the northern portion, the development impact on the Elgin Creek, and to discuss the need for 34
Avenue and if needed the alignment options for 34 Avenue west of 140 Street to minimize the impact on tree
removal and the creek, and tree retention issues, and that the Developer and his consultants provide the
necessary analysis for staff to prepare the above report, that the Community be consulted, and work with staff
and the Developer, and that this report be completed in three to four weeks.”

 
At the same meeting, Council adopted the recommendations of the Environmental Advisory Committee, which
are shown in Appendix I.

 
This report specifically deals with three elements of Council's motions.  Council's direction in relation to these
three elements will then act as the foundation for completing a redesign of the subdivision proposal that fully
responds to the directions contained within Council's February 26, 2001, motion.

 
The three elements that this report addresses are:

 

·     The need for 34 Avenue between 140 and 144 Streets and feasible alternative alignments for this section of
street that would minimize the impact of the construction of the road on existing trees and on Elgin Creek;

·     A process which will be followed to complete all necessary investigations related to the landfill site with a
view to ensuring that the landfill issues are fully addressed prior to Council approval of the subject application;
and

·     A public consultation process for obtaining additional public input into the redesign of the proposed
development.

 

Road Issues
 

The current grid road network is shown on Figure 1.  As can be seen from Figure 1, northbound traffic from a
large part of the Semiahmoo Peninsula is funnelled through one exit point, namely Crescent Road from 144
Street to King George Highway.  To maintain the functionality of the road network into the future and reduce
traffic volumes on the heritage-designated Crescent Road, 34 Avenue was proposed to be connected through
from King George Highway to 140 Street.  In addition to relieving Crescent Road, the proposed section
between 140 and 144 Streets would reduce the volume of traffic on 32 Avenue between 140 and 144 Streets. 
This concept of connecting 34 Avenue through was included in the proposed subdivision layout that was the
subject of the recent public hearing and subsequent Council discussion.  Following Council's request that 34
Avenue be reconsidered, detailed traffic modelling has been carried out for various road options.  The results of
this modelling have then been used to evaluate various networks in balance with other important factors
involved; namely, impact to the creek and loss of trees.  Additionally, the option of relocating 34 Avenue
slightly to the south which significantly reduces the number of trees lost and has less impact on the ravine at
the creek crossing has been reviewed.  The environmental gains with this relocation are offset by additional
land costs estimated at approximately $1 million.

 
Based on the review of options, the improvement in the functionality of the road network gained by connecting
34 Avenue from 140 to 144 Streets is difficult to justify, compared with the impact of the proposed road on the
creek and the existing trees (or the additional land acquisition cost for the southerly realignment).  This,
together with the considerable adverse public feedback, lead to a conclusion that 34 Avenue is not justified as a
through road between 140 and 144 Streets.  However, if 34 Avenue is not connected through to 144 Street,
there will be additional traffic on 32 Avenue between 144 and 140 Streets and on Crescent Road between 140
Street and King George Highway as continued growth and development takes place in the area.
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If Council approves Recommendation 1, then the R91 map will be correspondingly amended.

 

Landfill Issues
 

The landfill south of the unopened 34 Avenue alignment has been extensively studied to determine landfill
limits and what environmental safeguards are necessary.  The landfill north of 34 Avenue has not been
investigated in a similar manner.  Consequently, such an investigation needs to be pursued by both the
developer and the City.  This investigation will fully address the recommendations, relating to the landfill, of
the Environmental Advisory Committee, as adopted by Council.  The north area investigation will not,
however, affect any subdivision layouts south of the landfill as the southern boundary of the landfill is
accurately determined.  However, for final provincial approval of the proposed rezoning and subdivision, the
entire landfill will need to be evaluated as a ‘whole'.  As such, the developer and the City need to be jointly
involved in completing the evaluation of the landfill to the north of 34 Avenue.  Terms of Reference have been
prepared and costs of the study work have been estimated.  This study work will proceed in parallel with
completion of development layout and the addressing of servicing issues on the proposed development to the
south.

 
A complicating factor on this landfill area north of 34 Avenue is that only one of the three lots containing the
landfill is owned by the City.  Consequently, permission from the owner of the other two lots will be necessary
to carry out soil tests and environmental monitoring on these lots.  Should the owner of the lots not wish to
provide access for this testing and monitoring, the City will seek alternative approaches such as a provincial
order to permit access.

 
At this time, the nature of the environmental safeguards for the northerly part of the landfill are unknown. 
Consequently we cannot predict what future arrangements will be required with the private property owner to
the north.

 
The results of the testing and monitoring that are carried out in the northerly landfill area will be submitted,
together with the environmental study work on the southerly landfill area, to the Ministry of Environment
Lands and Parks for their approval prior to final adoption of the rezoning for the proposed development.

 
The time frame for this submission to the Ministry is in the range of two to three months.  Consequently,
should Council grant Third Reading to this development proposal, this work will be completed between Third
Reading and Final Adoption of the rezoning by-law.  Ministry approval will be necessary before Final
Adoption.

 

Public Consultation Process
 
     The Planning & Development Department has developed a public consultation process for redesigning the proposed
development plan.  This process will involve the City, the Developer, the Elgin Ratepayers Association, and all other
interested residents of the community.  A four-member Sub-Committee of the Elgin Ratepayers Association will be
formed to work with staff and the Developer in revising the development plan.  Once a revised development plan has
been designed between the City, the developer, and the Sub-Committee, a Public Information Meeting will be held to
inform and obtain input from all interested members of the community on the proposal.  Notification of this Public
Information meeting will be delivered by letter to those property owners within the normal Public Hearing notification
area and to those who spoke at the Public Hearing, and will be advertised in the local newspaper.
 

The revision to the subdivision layout will focus on addressing concerns specifically identified by Council, including:
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Ø     Landfill contamination ramifications;

Ø     Impacts on Elgin Creek (i.e., Environmental protection);

Ø     Tree Retention; and

Ø     The direction given by Council in relation to 34 Avenue resulting from consideration of this report.
 

In addition to the issues specifically identified by Council in their direction to staff, representatives from the
Elgin Ratepayers Association have advised that they will be seeking a substantial reduction in the density of the
development proposal to address their concerns.  The Developer, on the other hand, has indicated that a density
reduction may not be required, provided the other issues identified by Council are adequately addressed.  In the
absence of other direction by Council, staff will act to address the other concerns identified by Council while
maintaining the overall density as previously proposed by the developer (i.e., 108 building sites).  It is
anticipated that the public consultation process will take 3 to 4 weeks to complete.  It is anticipated that a report
can be submitted to Council for consideration by the middle of April.  The Developer and Community
representatives have agreed in principle to the approach outlined in this proposed consultation process.

 
 
 
Murray D. Dinwoodie          Jorgen Johansen, P. Eng.
General Manager          General Manager, Engineering
Planning & Development Department
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